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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the fourth Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company along with the audited accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS - FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Your directors take pleasure in informing you that the fiscal 2019-20 marks itself as the first year of achieving
profitability for your company. Incidentally, it is also the first year of reaching the asset size of Rupees Five
Hundred Crores, thus, being categorized as a Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company in terms
of the Reserve Bank of India directives, consequently being subject to dynamic nature of regulations.

Your Company, owing to its business model of being a “Shadow Bank™ has continued to focus on a limited line
of products and defined customer segment to create a niche for itself. The customized product offerings, thorough
comprehension of the target customer segment, using digital media, ensuring last mile delivery to the customers
have helped the company capture a decent market share.

The fiscal 2019-20 experienced, the wake of general wave of fear relating to the liquidity crisis that arose in the
previous vear. The economy in the year under review witnessed collapse and certain debt defaults by some of the
major Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC) of the country causing the banks cut down their NBFC
exposures thus exacerbating the funding positions of the NBFCs. This created a vicious cycle where the lending
by and to NBFCs went down affecting money supply to multiple sectors. Providing financing and credit is
important to keep the money supply liquid and the economy humming, thus the banking regulator through the year
took several steps to ensure that banks lend the NBFCs.

With this brief background your directors would like to thank you for the equity investments provided during the
year under review and brief you on the major operational highlights and summarized financial results of your
company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2020.

Operational highlights

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20

Education Loans Rs. 174 Crores Rs. 179 Crores

Number of students added during the Financial Year | 978 855

Loans to Educational institutes Rs, 87 Crores Rs. 88 Crores

Number of School Trusts/Societies (secured) 82 6l

Summarized financial results are as under:
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020

Gross Income 24,81,07,041 58,84.,93,848
Profit Before Depreciation and Tax (3,93,89,020) 10,80,78,668
Depreciation 61,52,394 90,52,405
Profit Before Tax (4.55,41,414) 9.90,26,263
Provision for Tax - (3,37,202)
Profit / (Loss) after tax (4,55.41,414) 0,93,63.465
Less: Transfer to Reserve as per Section 45-IC  of - 1,98,72.693
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (4,55,41,414) 7.94.90.772




DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

Your Directors do not recommend dividend for the financial year under review and the funds would be
utilized for the company’s growth

PROFIT TO BE CARRIED FORWARD TO RESERVES

Your Directors propose to transfer Rs 1,98,72,693 as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 to the Special Reserve of the Company for the year ended on 3 1* March, 2020.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company's Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood at 73.95% as on 3 1% March, 2020, of which Tier
I capital was 73.49% and Tier Il Capital was 0.46%. As per regulatory norms, the minimum
requirement for the CAR and Tier | capital as 317 March, 2020 are 15% and 10% respectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Meetings of the Board: The Board of Directors of your Company met five times during the financial
year under review.

Independent Directors: All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the
criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the same have
been taken on record by the Board of Directors. As the Company is a Private Limited Company, the
retirement by rotation of directors is not applicable.

During the year under review Shri. Sanjay Asher Independent Director of the Company who was
appointed on 8" September, 2017 resigned from the directorship of your company on 22" January,
2020. Shri. C llango has been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company on 29" May, 2020
under the category of Independent Director. Shri C llango’s appointment as an Independent Director
of the company will be proposed for a period of five years at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the company. There are no pecuniary transactions between the Directors and the Company except the
sitting fees being paid to the Independent Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and its
Committee(s).

Committees of the Board: Your Company is a private limited company and was not required to have
Committees of the Board until January, 2020 when the Company's asset size reached Rs. 500 Crores
to become a Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company. With an objective to achieve
highest standard of Corporate Governance your Company has always had Independent Directors on
Board making the composition of the Board of Directors versatile to ensure the company makes well
thought and informed decisions. Keeping in view the same, the Board also had constituted the Board
committees with specific terms of reference to provide an expert view and to recommend the same to
the Board.

There are three Sub-Committees of the Board consisting of the Board members themselves
1. The Audit Committee
2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

3. The Executive Committee.

During the year under review two new committees have been constituted



1. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) on 19™ April, 2019 and
2. The Risk Management Committee with effect from 17" October, 2019,

Audit Committee: Shri. Sanjay Asher, Shri. Manish Chokhani and Shri. Gautam Jain were the members
of the Audit Committee. Shri. Sanjay Asher was the Chairman of the Committee until 22" January,
2020. The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year under review and all the members
were present in all meetings except Shri. Manish Chokhani who could not attend one of the four
meetings of Audit Committee due to preoccupation. The Board had accepted all the recommendations
of the Audit Committee.

On 29" May, 2020, the Audit Committee has been reconstituted with Shri. C Ilango as the Chairman
and Shri. Manish Chokhani and Shri. Gautam Jain being the other two members of the Committee.

Nomination_and Remuneration Committee: The members of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) were Shri. Sanjay Asher, Shri. Vivek Saraogi, Shri. Manish Chokhani and Shri.
Gautam Jain. Shri. Sanjay Asher, Independent Director was the Chairman of the Company until his
resignation on 22™ January, 2020. The NRC met once during the financial year under review and all
the members except Shri. Vivek Saraogi were present in the meeting. The Board had accepted all the
recommendations of NRC,

On 29™ May, 2020, the NRC has been reconstituted with Shri. Manish Chokhani as the Chairman and
Shri. C Ilango, Shir. Vivek Saraogi and Shri. Gautam Jain being the other two members of the
Committee,

Executive Committee: Shri. Gautam Jain, Non-Executive Director and Shri. Neeraj Saxena, Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are the members of the Executive Committee.
Shri. Gautam Jain is the Chairman of the Committee. The Executive committee met fifieen times during
the financial year under review and all the members were present at all meetings. The Board had
accepted all the recommendation of Executive committee.

Asset Liability Management Committee: Shri. Gautam Jain, Director, Shri, Neeraj Saxena, Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer, Shri. Raghavendra Prabhu, Chief Financial Officer, Ms. Namita
Raja, Head — Credit and Operations are the members of the Asset Liability Management Committee.
Shri. Gautam Jain is the Chairman of the Committee. The Asset Liability Management Committee met
three times during the financial year under review and all the members were present at all meetings.
The Board had accepted all the recommendation of Asset Liability Committee. The constitution of the
Asset Liability Management Committee was changed with the adoption of the policy on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework on 22™ January, 2020 by the Board. The Constitution of the committee now
is the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO), Chief Financial Officer and Head
Credit and Operations of the Company, with MD and CEO being the Chairman of the Committee.

Risk Management Committee: Shri. Manish Chokhani- Independent Director, Shri. Neeraj Saxena,
Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Namita Raja, Head — Credit and Operations, Shri. Raghavendra Prabhu,
Chief Financial Officer & Shri. Goutham KS, Head — Information Technology of the Company are the
members of the Risk Management Committee. Shri. Manish Chokhani is the Chairman of the
Committee. The Risk Management Committee met once during the financial year under review and all
the members were present at the meeting. The Board had accepted all the recommendation of Risk
Management Committee.




Annual Fvaluation of Board: The Board carried out a formal annual evaluation of its own performance
and that of its commitees and individual directors. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration the various aspects of the
Board's functioning, composition of the Board and its Committees, execution and performance of
specific duties, obligations and governance. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors
was also carried out along with the other Board Members at the Board Meeting. The performance
evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors was also carried out by the Independent Directors,
separately at their meeting. Your Directors express their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The Company has a Board approved Remuneration Policy laying down the standards to:

(a) Establish the remuneration system driven by the strategic objectives of the company

(b) Establish remuneration practices strengthened by the principles of meritocracy and
fairness.

(c) Ensure the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

The standards serve as the guidelines for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
to function. It also provides the guidance to the Company’s management and Human Resources
Department to follow in its recruitment process.

The Remuneration Policy has been displayed on the website of the company. The link for the same is
hitps://www.auxilo.com/corporate-governance

The Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy.

CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the year under review.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, Hence there are no deposits
unpaid or unclaimed at the end of the year.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016) were
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 years on 30" September, 2017 at
the Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2017. M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered
Accountants LLP continues to be the Statutory Auditor of the company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review your Company’s Authorized Share Capital increased from Rs.
233.00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Thirty Three Crores) to Rs. 20,08,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Thousand and Eight Crores). The Paid up Share Capital of the company as at 31* March, 2020 stood
at Rs. 344,14,21,530/- (Rupees Three Forty Four Crores Fourteen Lakh Twenty One thousand Five
Hundred and Thirty only).



Increase in the paid up capital - During the year under review, the company raised Equity capital by
way of rights issue of 15,00,00,000 Equity shares at face value of Rs. 10/- each, an offer aggregating
to Rs.150,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Crores) to the then existing shareholders of the
Company. At the time of issue Shri. Akash Bhanshali, M/s Elme Advisors LLP & M/s Balrampur Chini
Mills Limited were the equity shareholders of the company.

4.40,62,153 Equity Shares at Rs. 15 (Rs. 10 being the face value and Rs. § the Premium) were issued
and allotted by way of Preferential Allotment to M/s Elme Advisors LLP, M/s Balrampur Chini Mills
Limited and M/s ICICI Bank Limited. The equity shareholding of ICIC] Bank Limited is 9.90% as on
31% March, 2020.

The total paid up Equity Capital of the Company therefore stands at Rs. 344,06,21,530/- (Rupees Three
Forty Four Crores Six Lakhs Twenty On thousand Five ) as on 3 1% March, 2020. The Paid up Preference
share capital of the Company has remained unchanged at Rs. 800,000/~ (Rupees Eight Lakhs Only).

Shri. Akash Bhanshali one of the company’s Promoter Shareholder transferred the equity shareholding
of 0.5% to M/s Elme Advisors LLP on 25" February, 2020.

DEBENTURES
During the year under review your company issued and alloted 2,500 (Two Thousand Five
Hundred) rated, unsecured, senior, redeemable, taxable, transferable, unlisted, non-convertible

debentures, each having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) and aggregating to a
face value of INR 25.00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore) to Unifi AIF.

CREDIT RATING

During the financial year 2019-20, CARE Limited assigned the following credit ratings to the
borrowings of the Company:

Facilities Amount Rating
(Rupees in Crores)
Long Term Bank 400 CARE A-; Stable
Facilities [Single A Minus; outlook: Stable]
Mon-Convertible 100 CARE A-; Stable
Debentures [Single A Minus; outlook; Stable]
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has only one Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP 2017" or "the Scheme™) with a
pool of 1,20,00,000 Employee Stock Options convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of
face value of Rs.10 each. The exercise price under the scheme is the fair market value as determined
by the valuer appointed by the Board at the time of grant. The Scheme as approved authorizes the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to administer the same.

Relow mentioned are the details of Employee Stock Option Plan, 2017:

1. Options granted: 103,05,000
2. Options vested: NIL



3. Options exercised: Nil

4. Options lapsed: 7.40,000 (Forms part of the pool)

5. Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option during the financial year: Nil

6. Exercise price: Exercise price is the ‘Fair Market Value' of the shares of the Company as
determined by an independent valuer appointed by the Company for each grant

7. Variation of terms of option: - The terms of options have not been varied

8. Money realised by exercise of options: No options have been exercised during the year under

review
9. Total number of options in force: 95,635,000

Employee wise details of options granted during the year under review

i. Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. No | Key Managerial Personnel No. of options granted

NIL

ii. Any other employee who received a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five
percent or more of options granted during the financial year under review

Sr. Name of the Employee No. of options granted
e 1. | Shri. Kamaljeet Singh Mehandiratta 1,50,000

2. | Shri. Tapas Chatterjee 25,000

3. | Shri. P. Kalyan Chakravarthi 25,000

4, | Shri. Srikanth K. 25,000

iii. Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversion) of the company at
the time of grant - NIL

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9, as required under Section
92 of the Companies Act, 2013, is included in this Report as Annexure — A and forms an integral part

of this Report.

The annual return of the company has been placed on the website of the company. The following is
web link for the same: https://www auxilo.com/corporate-governance



COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BECOME SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT
VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANY

M/s Balrampur Chini Mills Limited’s (BCML) investment being to the tune of 45.05% equity
shareholding in your company, your Company continues to be the associate company of BCML by

virtue of BCML having the significant influence on your company in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Your company is the associate company of M/s Elme Advisors LLP (Elme) by virtue of Elme having
the significant influence on your company in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not made any loans, guarantee or investments under the Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2019-20.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Your company has not entered into any contract or arrangement with related parties referred under the
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2019-20.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE OR DISCLAIMERS MADE:

AUDITORS’ REPORT - There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers
made by the Statutory Auditors of the company in their audit report. There is no Fraud reported by
auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, the Auditors have made a statement about the delay in making the payment of Provident
Fund (PF) in one case. PF of a new employee could not be deposited with the authorities at the time of
transition of employee’s PF amount from previous employer to the Company, due to the employee’s
withdrawal of PF.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company maintains adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of business,
size and complexity of its operations. The Company has well-established processes, guidelines and
procedures to augment the internal controls. This, coupled with adequate internal information systems
ensures proper information flow for the decision-making process. The internal control system is
designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, protection and
conservation of assets and compliances with applicable laws and regulations. These controls ensure
that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other information.

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee which periodically reviews all the business,
operational and other risks as defined under the Board approved risk management policy and ensures
that corrective measures are taken. The Committee is responsible to recommend improvement in
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance process of the company, if necessary,
keeping in mind the Company’s requirements, growth prospects and ever evolving business
environment. This system facilitates timely detection and plugging of anomalies, if any, by various
business functions. :



VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and
employees to bring to the attention of the Management, their genuine concerns about behavior of
employees, if any, or report about the unethical behavior by using the mechanism provided in the
Whistle Blower Policy. During the financial year 2019-20, no cases under this mechanism were
reported to the Company.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors” Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, your directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of"
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period:

(¢) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis: and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

GOING CONCERN ASSESSMENT

The Company’s annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. Despite the liquidity
crisis and the COVID 19 pandemic, your Company has sufficient liquidity and has been able to honour
all its obligations. The cash flow position in the Financial Year 2020-21, on the assumption of no
business during the year, as estimated to be, is such that it can comfortably tide over any disruptions
caused. Even if the cash inflows are stressed at seventy five percent of the original cash flows the
Company does have sufficient cash balance. The Company is also in the process to garner more liability
relationships with all the possible avenues such as private sector and public sector banks and the
response has been quite positive owing to company’s fundamentals, investor strength and its credit

rating. The Company has a diversified mix of sources of funding and your company is optimistic to get
resources at competitive costs.

Due to the pandemic there is a sense of caution, low sentiment and low economic activity, which may
lead to a drop in business plan for Financial Year 2020-21 as compared to what it was originally
envisaged. However the business is expected to gradually move to normalcy . The management will
continue to closely monitor the material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the
operations of the Company. The outlook of the Company for the year ahead after COVID pandemic is
to drive profitable growth, robust quality assets and continue to focus on its primary products that is
Education Loan and Education Institution Loan to meet the changing customer needs and will leverage
technology to deliver better customer experience.

With this, the estimated minimal impact of COVID19 your Directors assure you that the Going concern
assumption is validated as your Company will be continuing its operations for the foreseeable future
and it has neither the intention, nor the necessity of shutting down or reducing the scale of its operations.



DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has been employing women employees in various cadres within its office. The Company
has in place a policy against Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees are covered
under the policy. There was no compliant received from any employee during the financial year 2019-
20 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31.03.2020 for redressal.

There was no change in nature of business of vour company during the financial Year 2019-20.

There have been no material changes or commitment between the end of the financial year of the
company to which financial statement relates and the date of the report.

During the year there have been no orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operation in future.

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed for ensuring orderly
and efficient conduct of the company’s business are adequate.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in herein.

Conservation of Energy : Not applicable
Technology Absorption : Not applicable
Foreign Exchange Eamings : Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo : Mil

Your Company’s website address is https://www.auxilo.com/index
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MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

SR. NO, PARTICULARS
i) CIN U65990MH2016PTC286516
i) Registration No. 286516
iii) MName of the Company M/s. Auxilo Finserve Private
Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Company limited by Shares / Non-
govt company
V) Address of the Registered office and LG-B-13 & 14, Lower Ground
contact details Floor, Art Guild House, Kurla West,
LBS Marg, Mumbai - 400070
vi) Whether listed company (Yes / No) No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Link Intime India Private Limited
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any C-101, 1* Floor, 247 Park, LBS
Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai 400083

Phone: 022 4918 6000

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: To provide financial services
and ancillary services

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

Sr. No. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products / services Product / service of the company
| To provide education loan and
l educational institutional loans 64920 100%

[II. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sr.
No

% of | Applicable
shares | section
held

Name and address of CIN /GLN Holding/
. | the company Subsidiary/
Associate
NIL




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equlty Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the vear

Demat

|
hy
si
ca
I

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Phys
ical

Taotal

% of
Total
Shares

Yo
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

aj)
Individual/HU
F'

750,000

750,000

0.5%

b) Central
Govt

c) State Gowvt
(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

74,250,000

74,250,000

49.5%

155,000,000

155,000,000

45.05%

4.45%

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

75,000,000

75,000,000

50%

155,000,000

155,000,000

45.05%

4.95%

{2) Foreign

a) NRls -
Individuals

b) Other —
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other

Sub-total (A)
(2):-

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

34,062,153

34,062,153

9.90%

¢) Central
Gowt

d) State Govt
(s)




e)Venture
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h)Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

34,062,153

34,062,153

9.90%

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

75,000,000

75,000,000

0%

155,000,000

155,000,000

45.05%

4.95%

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
sharcholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
Holding
nominal share

capital in excess
of Rs 1 lakh

¢) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

75.000,000

75,000,000

50%

155,000,000

155,000,000

45.05%

4.95%

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

75,000,000

75,000,000

50%

189,062,153

189,062,153

54.95%

4.95%

C. Shares
held by
Custodian for
GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

150,000,000

150,000,000

100%a

344,062,153

344,062,153

100%




(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. | Shareholder’s | Sharcholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year | %
No. Name year change in
No. of % of % of Shares | No. of % of % of Shares | share
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / holding
Shares encumbered Shares encumbered | during
of the to total of the to total the year
company shares company | shares
1 M/s. Elme 74,250,000 49.5% - 155,000,000 | 45.05% - 4.45%
Advisors LLP
2 Shri. Akash 7,350,000 0.5% - - - 0.5%
Bhanshali
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. | Name of Shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding during the
yvear
No. of shares | % of No. of shares | % of
total total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
1 M/s. Elme Advisors LLFP
At the beginning of the year - - 74,250,000 49.5% 74,250,000 49.5%
Increase / Decrease in 09/04/2019 | Rights 37,125,000 49.5% 111,375,000 | 49.5%
Shareholding during the Issue
year
12/09/2019 | Rights 37,125,000 49.5% 148,500,000 | 49.5%
Issue
25/02/2020 | Transfer 1,500,000 0.5 150,000,000 | 50%
from Shri.
Akash
Bhanshali
26/03/2020 | Preferential | 5,000,000 45.05% 155,000,000 | 45.05%
allotment
At the end of the year 31/03/2020 15,50,00,000 | 45.05% 155,000,000 | 45.05%
2 Shri. Akash Bhanshali
At the beginning of the year - - 750,000 0.5% 750,000 0.5%
Increase / Decrease in 09/04/2019 | Rights 3,75,000 0.5% 11,25,000 0.5%
lssue




Shareholding during the
year
12/09/2019 | Rights 3,75,000 0.5% 15,00,000 0.5%
lssue
25/02/2020 | Transfer to (15,00,000) 0.5% - s |
Elme
Advisors
LLP
At the end of the year 31/03/2020 - - - -

(iv). Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sr. | Name of Shareholders Date Reason Sharcholding at the Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding during the
year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of Yo of No. of Y of
Shareholders shares total shares total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
1 M/s. Balrampur Chini Mills
Limited
At the beginning of the year - - 750,00,000 50% 75,000,000 S50%
Increase / Decrease in 09/04/2019 | Rights Issue 37,500,000 50% 112,500,000 50%
Shareholding during the year
12/09/2019 | Rights Issue 37,500,000 50% 1 50,000,000 50%
26/03/2020 | Preferential 50,00,000 | 45.05% 155,000,000 | 45.05%
Allotment
Al the end of the vear 31/03/2020 15,50,00,000 | 45.05% 155,000,000 45.05%
2 M/s ICICI Bank Limited
At the beginning of the year - - - - - -
Increase / Decrease in 26/03/2020 | Preferential 34,062,153 9.90% 34,062,153 9.90%
Shareholding during the vear Allotment
At the end of the year 31/03/2020 34,062,153 9.90% 34,062,153 9.90%




{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Name of Shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding during the
vear
For Each of the Directors and No. of % of total | No. of % of total
KMP shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
1 Shri. Akash Bhanshali
At the beginning of the year - - 750,000 0.5% 750,000 0.5%
Increase / Decrease in (9/04/2019 | Rights 375,000 0.5% 1,125,000 0.5%
Shareholding during the year Issue
12/09/2019 | Rights 375,000 0.5% 1,500,000 0.5%
Issue
25/02/2020 | Transfer (1,500,000 0.5% - -
to Elme
Advisors
LLP
At the end of the year 31/03/2020 - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

| Secured Loans

. ]i:l_i_éﬂ_fedness at the heginning of _
 the financial year -

1] ) Principal Amount

ii} Interest due but not paid

| iii) In ]nterest accrued but not due

| Tutal [l+||+1u}

| Change in Indebtedness during

| the t'nancml year
[ * Ad{iumn
| « Reduction

| Net Change

' Indehtednm at the

end of the financial y }fear

1] Principal Amount

 ii) Interest due but not Eald

Unsecured

| Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

1,40,00,00,000

45,06.250 |

1,40,45,06,250

2.65,00,00,000

92,02,65,151

1,72,97.34,849

| iii) Interest accrued but not due
| Total (i+ii+iii)

| excluding
| deposits _ Sk
50,00,00,000 1 90,00,00,000 |
21,43,750 ‘ 2362500 ‘__
50,21,43,750 l 90,23,62,500 ‘
| 1,90,00,00,000 | 75,00,00,000 |
32,97,34,849 | 1,40,00,00,000 |
| | |
| 1,57,02,65,151 | -65,00.00,000 |
s e
| 2070265151 | 25,00,00,000
26,63,320 | 69,159
2,07,29.28471 | 25,00.69,159

2,32,02,65,151 |

27,32.479
2,32,29,97,630



VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr.

MNo.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of MD / WTD / Manager

Total

Shri. Neeraj Saxena - Managing
Director & CEO

Gross salary

|

{a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

Rs. 1,12,78,740

Rs. 1,12,78,740

w/s 17(2)Income tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

Stock Option*

40,00,000
(Granted in the FY 2017-18)

40,00,000

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Rs.1,12,78,740

Rs. 1,12,78,740

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. No. | Particulars of Name of the Director Total Amount
Remuneration
Shri. Sanjay Asher - Shri. Manish
Independent Director Chokhani -
Independent Director
1 Independent Directors

« Commission

+ Others, please
| specify




* Fee for attending
board / committee
Meetings

Rs 3,20 000/-

Rs 2 80 000

Rs 600,000

Total (1)

Rs 3,20,000/-

Rs.2,80,000

Rs. 6,00,000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

* Fee for attending
board / committee
Meetings

« Commission

* Others, please
specify

Total (2)

Total (By=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Rs 3,20,000/-

Rs. 2,80,000/-

Rs. 6,00,000/-

Owverall Ceiling as per
the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD /
MANAGER / WTD:

Sr. No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

CEO

Company CFO

Secretary

Total

Ms. Deepika Shri.
Thakur

Chauhan

Raghavendra
Prabhu

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

Rs. 23,79.460

Rs. 67,49,492

Rs. 91,28,952

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act., 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option *

130,000
(granted in the FY
2017-18)

6.00,000
{(granted in the
FY 2018-19)

750,000

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as %o of profit




- others, specify

3 Others, please specify

Total

Rs. 23,79,460

Rs. 67,49,492

Rs. 91,28,952

*Stock options indicated under VI A and C were not granted during the Financial year 2019-20

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Deseription | Penalty / IRD / NCLT/ | if any
Act Punishment/ COURT] (give Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C, OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

Place: Mumbai

Date: june 8, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shri. Manish Chokhani
Chairman

FaL—=—

Shri. Neeraj Saxena
Managing Director and CEQ




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PREAMBLE

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited “Auxilo” was formed on October 4. 2016 and was earlier known as
Stellenyak General Finance Private Limited. Auxilo has been granted the Certificate of Registration by
Reserve Bank of India to carry on the business of NBFC (Non Deposit) on May 3, 2017, The Company
commenced its operations in October 2017.

Auxilo is a pro-education NBFC poised on serving the financing gaps in the Indian education sector,
with its focus on students and scaling the education infrastructure through innovative financial solution
delivery. Our endeavour is to create a brand which is trusted and respected in education finance space.

INDIAN ECONOMY AND NBFC INDUSTRY

The FY 2019-20 turned out to be an eventful year for the Indian economy and more so for the financial
services sector,

GDP growth for FY19-20 was expected to be around ~6.5%-7%. However, the actual growth rate that
was reported by the end of FY 19-20 was around ~4.7%. This reported GDP was the lowest in six and
a half years, due to subdued expansion in agriculture, manufacturing, and government expenditure,

Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) in India hold a significantly large portfolio. Their smooth
functioning is essential for the penetration and expansion of credit across segments resulting in
development of the Indian economy.

The GDP slowdown in the economy has put NBFC’s at the epicentre of this crisis. It started with few
leading finance companies defaulting on payments to its lenders. Since then NBFCs have been found
to be constantly facing problems with managing their liquidity positions owing to multiple factors such
as increase in borrowing costs, asset -liability mismatches, repricing risks, nature of assets and
reluctance of lenders/investors though towards the 3% quarter of FY 19-20 liquidity scenario for
NBFC’s started improving. Further, the outbreak of COVID -19 during the quarter ended 31 March
2020 there has been a considerable slowdown in economic activities across the globe with most
countries initiating lockdown to contain the pandemic.

CRISIL Research has stated that the current coronavirus pandemic could lead to a four per cent
permanent loss to real Indian gross domestic product (GDP) and said that more fiscal stimulus will be

required. “Base case GDP growth expected at 1.8 per cent for fiscal 2021. Risks tilted towards the
downside scenario of zero GDP growth,” CRISIL Research said if the lockdown is extended.’
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This triggered stress in the system and exposed Indian financial market to the financial risks in relation
to the non-banking financial companies (NBFCs). Credit flow to the sector may further decline, leading
to liquidity crunch scenarios once again, Risk aversion, tight liquidity conditions and decelerated global
and domestic economy have been the key characteristics since the beginning of FY 19-20 and it seems
to continue in FY 20-21 as well due to the ongoing pandemic.

The Government of India and RBI has introduced various economic and fiscal stimulus measures 10
tide over the COVID-19 crisis. Announcements amongst other things includes establishment of a credit
facility worth INR 30,000 crore for NBFCs/housing finance companies (HFCsYmicrofinance
institutions (MFIs), along with a partial credit guarantee scheme (in addition to the one announced in
December 2019) worth INR 45,000 crore for NBFCs,

The Reserve Bank of India as a part of its measures to support and boost the economy has vide its
notifications titled "COVID-19 Regulatory Package" announced various liquidity relief measures in its
notification dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020 such as Reduction of policy repo rate and CRR,
RBI will also conduct auctions of TLTRO (Targeted Long Term Repo Operations) of up to three-year
tenor of appropriate sizes, Liquidity coverage ratio for banks reduced from 100% to 80% likely to
release liquidity. These liquidity measures are supposed to inject liquidity of INR 4.74 lakh crore
(~USD 63 billion) to the system, though its effectiveness is still to be seen.

Further directed all Banks, NBFCs and other financial institutions to grant moratorium of three months
on the payment of all instalments and/or interest as applicable to all eligible borrowers and excluded
moratorium period from the 90 Day NPA norm for asset downgrade. This moratorium was further
extended by another 3 months from June 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020 vide RBI circular dated 23 May
2020,

Considering the balance sheet size and importance of NBFCs to the Indian economy, the regulatory
authority has decided that it is vital that NBFCs be made more resilient, well-regulated and properly
governed in terms of liquidity risk vis-i-vis management of their assets and liabilities.

EDUCATION SECTOR & FINANCING NEEDS

India is evolving to become a knowledge-based economy, wherein human capital with specialized skills
is its major strength,

With India having the largest population in the world of about ~500 million in the age bracket of 5-24
years®, presents large number of opportunities in education space supported by strong cultural affinity
towards educating the next generation. The increase in demand across all levels of education is driving
expansion of education infrastructure across semi-urban and rural centres. Similarly, India has around
3.7* crore students who are pursuing higher education in over 950* universities and 49,000* institutes.
Unlike the past, where there was a mismatch between demand and supply of management institutes,
today there is an ample supply of such institutes.

With the increasing need for qualified professionals, higher education has now become a necessity.
However, quality education is expensive not only abroad but also in India, making many students to
increasingly depend on education loans to fulfil their desire for quality education,

Also, there is a need to improve and create more education infrastructure to cater to the requirements
of Primary education of the Indian students. K-12 (or Kindergarten to 12th grade) represents the
largest segment within the education space. The target population of this segment is 3-17 Years,
representing ~25% of the total population. There are more than ~1.5 million schools that cater to ~300
million students. There is a need for financing in K-12 segment to improve the quality of the existing
infrastructure and create more.



OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Gross Enrolment Ratio (GER) measures enrolment as percentage of a specific age-group of the
population. The Higher Education GER (18-23 age group) in India for the year 2018-19 is 26.3%. This
is an increase over the previous year and is in line with the increasing trend over the years,

While higher education GER. in India is on an increasing trend, it stills lags when compared with other
countries (Asia — China (51), South Korea (94), Malaysia (45), Indonesia (36), Iran (70) etc. Globally,
USA’s higher education GER is 88, UK’s is 60, Germany is at 70 and Canada’s is 69 etc.). Hence the
demand for higher education is expected to increase with the need for more skilled professionals.

Further, there is a huge unfulfilled demand for education loans in India. Parents and students continue
to utilize their own sources to pay for cost of education. Out of 3.6 crore students pursuing higher-
education, only a handful of students have access to education loans. As per a recent RBI report, As per
RBI, education loans outstanding under priority sector in India stands at ¥ 51,906° crore in March 2020
as compared to 2 53,950 crore in March 2019,

In developed countries like USA where the population is around 25% of India’s, education loans
outstanding is high. As per a report published by Federal Reserve Bank of New York in February 2019,
education loans outstanding stands at around %115 lakh crore on May 2020° ($1.54 trillion Converted
at 13= 75). This indicates a much higher penetration as compared to that in India.

This indicates relatively low market penetration. Hence there is huge potential to finance the Higher
Education Sector.

There are ~15.27 lakh schools in the country, out of which more than ~3lakh® are private and un-aided.
There is a requirement to improve existing infrastructure of schools in tier-2, tier-3 cities and rural areas
of the country. Also, considering the Indian demographics and growing GER of Primary and Secondary
education, lot of new infrastructure needs to be created to cater to the needs of Indian population. This
results in need for financing and NBFC’s play an important role in reaching the last mile to create or
better this education infrastructure,

Though, as a lender in the education loans sector, the biggest threat the Company faces is the
macroeconomic environment in India and abroad. Vast geographical reach and corresponding
distribution capabilities of banks is another threat.

AUXILO RISKS AND CONCERNS

We have a robust risk management framework in place to identify, measure, monitor and manage the
critical risks we face. The framework, including policies and procedures, is regularly reviewed and
enhanced in response to changes in the external environment and business processes,

The key risks are: -

Risk Description Mitigation

Liguidity Risk Liquidity risk is the risk of being | The Asset and Liabilities Committee
unable to raise funds from the | (ALCO) meets regularly to review the
market at optimal costs to meet | liquidity position based on future cash
operational and debt servicing | flows. The Company also maintains
requirements. adequate liquid assets and reserves and
has access to funding to hedge against
unexpected requirements,




Interest Rate Risk

Fluctuations in interest rates
could adversely affect
borrowing costs, interest income
and net interest margins

Policies and quantifiable limits are in
place that involve assessment of various
types of risks and modifications in assets
and liabilities to manage such risks.

Operational Risk

It arises when the flow of and
controls over the operations of
the company are lacking, which
has adverse impact on the

continuity of business,
reputation and profitability of
the company.

Company has robust and controlled
operational processes. It also has a robust
IT security framework.

Credit Risk

It is a risk of default or non-
repayment of loan by a borrower
which involves monetary loss to
the company, both in terms of
principal and interest.

The stringent credit appraisal system and
post-disbursement monitoring ensures
high quality of loan assets with minimum
probability of default. We have a robust
credit appraisal system and efficient
monitoring in place.

Business Risk

Being a NBFC, Auxilo is
exposed to various external risks
which have direct bearing on the
sustainability and profitability of
the Company. Foremost
amongst them are Industry Risk
and Competition Risk. The
volatile MACro-economic
conditions and changes in sector
attitude in wvarious economic
segments cause ups and downs
in the business, and result in loan
asset impairment.

We have a dedicated team to continuously

judge the trends in the economy and
various  industrial  sectors.  With
increasing competition in the financial
markets, the business growth of the
Company is now subject to its ability to
face competition. Keeping in with trends
and practices in the market we have
developed tailor-made products to deepen
market penetration. Equipped with an
enthusiastic sales force, range of
products, continuous efforts to improve
TAT and customer friendly culture, the
Company is efficiently withstanding
competition.

Regulatory Risk

It is the risk of change in laws
and regulations  materially
impacting the business.

All the applicable periodic guidelines
issued by the RBI are fully adhered to and
complied with by the Company. The
Company has put in place robust systems
and processes to ensure compliance with
all the applicable regulations to earn the
trust and goodwill of its stakeholders.

CREDIT RATING

Auxilo has been awarded a credit rating of A-/stable from CARE for its long term bank facilities. This
rating by CARE reaffirms the high reputation and trust Auxilo has earned for its sound financial
management and ability to meet financial obligations,

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following table presents Company's abridged financials for the financial year 2019-20, including
revenues, expenses and profits.



Abridged Statement of Profit and Loss:

Tincrs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019
Revenue from operations 56.33 18.01
Other income 2.52 65.79
Total revenue 58.85 24.81
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 16.10 12.88
Finance costs 17.21 3.99
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0.91 0.61
Other expenses 14.74 11.88
Total expenses 48.95 29.36 :
Profit before tax 9.90 (4.55)
Tax expense -0.03 -
Profit for the year 9.94 (4.55)
Key Ratios:
Key Indicators 2019-20 2018-19
PBT/Total Income 16.8% -18.4%
PBT/Total Assets 1.6% -1.6%
RONW {Av& Met Worth) 4.0% -4.5%
Debt/ Equity 0.6 1.0
Capital Adequacy 73.95% 50.00%
Tier | Capital 73.49% 49.60%
Tier I1 Capital 0.46% 0.40%

As planned, the Company has achieved an operational breakeven in the current Financial year.

FULFILMENT OF THE RBI’'S NORMS AND STANDARDS

Auxilo fulfils and often exceeds norms and standards laid down by the RBI relating to the recognition
and provisioning of non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity ratio, etc. The capital

to risk-weighted assets ratio of Auxilo is 73.95% which is well above the RBI norm of 15%.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company focuses only on lending to education sector. It has two types of education loans products

» Higher Education Loans /Student Loans

* Loans to Educational Institutes
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Higher Education Loan
During the financial year 2019 —20, education loans disbursed by the Company was 2179 Crores. The

Company disbursed education loans to 1,119 students (previous year 1,104 students).

The Company has two types of Education Loans
I.  Secured Education Loans
II.  Unsecured Education Loans.

Of the total customers live as on 31 March 2020, 621 customers were secured (AUM: 132 crores) and
1176 were unsecured (AUM: 204 crores)

Loans to Educational Institutes
During the financial year 2019 —20, education loans disbursed by the Company was #88 Crores. The
Company disbursed 94 School Trusts / Societies (previous year 85 students).

All loans to Educational Institutes are fully secured. The AUM as on 31 March 2020 stood at ¥153
Ccrores.

SUMMARY OF FY19-20 (OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS)

The key operational highlights of 2019-20 are:

*  Assets Under Management (AUM) rose to T489 crores from ¥265 crores in 2018-19, an increase
of 84%.

* More than 4200 cases logged in and assessed this financial year and the customer base crossed
1,900 customers.

* No NPA since commencement of operations

» Total income increased to 58.85 crores in 2019-20 from %24.81 crores in 2018-19.

* The Company achieved Operational breakeven during this financial year

* Opened a new office in May 2019 in Ahmedabad taking the total no of offices to 8 including the
head office.

* Increased employee base to 155 as on 3 1st March, 2020, against 129 as on 31st March, 2019.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Auxilo has adequate and effective controls to provide reasonable assurance on achievement of its
operational, compliance and reporting objectives which commensurate with the nature and size of the
business. Auxilo ensures that a reasonably effective internal control framework operates throughout the
organisation, which provides assurance with regard to safeguarding the assets, reliability of financial
and operational information, compliance with applicable statues, execution of the transactions as per
the authorisation and compliance with its internal policies.



The Statutory Auditors have verified the systems and processes and confirmed that the Internal
Financial Controls System over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating
effectively. The Audit committee considers the status of Internal Financial Control to review its
adequacy. The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee which periodically reviews all the
business, operational and other risks as defined under the Board approved risk management policy and
ensures that corrective measures are taken. The Committee is responsible to recommend improvement
in effectiveness of risk management, control and governance process of the company, if necessary,
keeping in mind the Company's requirements, growth prospects and ever evolving business
environment. This system facilitates timely detection and plugging of anomalies, if any, by various
business functions.

Auxilo plans to appoint an internal auditor for the coming financial year to comply with section 138 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules and amendments thereto. The Audit Committee
will approve an internal audit plan and conduct regular audits based on a risk based audit approach of
all the branches/offices of the Company. All significant Internal Audit observations will be reported to
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

For Auxilo, its people are a very valuable resource. In an increasingly competitive market for talent,
Auxilo continues to focus on attracting and retaining right talent. It is committed to provide right
opportunities to employees to realise their potential. As on 31 March 2020, Auxilo had 155 full-time
employees. The Company added 69 employees in FY19-20. Auxilo’s attrition rate for FY19-20 is
approximately 19%,

There has been no industrial dispute during the year,

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Since January 2020, The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continues to spread rapidly across
the globe including India. Various governments have introduced a variety of measures to contain the
spread of the virus. The Indian government had announced countrywide lockdown which is continued
at present. In this nation-wide lock-down period, though all the services across the nation are suspended
(except the specified essential services), some establishments including securities market intermediaries
can operate and are exempted from the lock-down.

Despite the liquidity crisis and the pandemic, Auxilo has successfully managed its liquidity balance and
honoured all its obligation including committed disbursals during the year through a strategic approach
towards liquidity management by way of conserving cash through calibrated disbursement, building
corpus by way of securitization, etc. along with using effective cost management techniques.

As there is an ongoing lock-down and even post this there will be a sense of caution, low sentiments
and low economic activity, there will be a significant drop in business plan for FY21 as compared to
what it had originally envisaged prior to COVID. The final impact of the ongoing global health
pandemic is very uncertain and the actual impact may be different than that estimated based on the
conditions once lock down ends. Assuming effective measures, Auxilo expects re-opening of
businesses gradually by June-July & full normalization by Oct 2020.Though, as this is an unprecedented
scenario its need to be seen how it evolves. The management will continue to closely monitor the
material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operations of the Company.



The outlook of the Company for the year ahead after COVID pandemic is to drive profitable growth,
robust quality assets and continue to focus on its primary products i.e. Education Loan and Education
Institution Loan to meet the changing customer needs and will leverage technology to deliver better
customer experience. Auxilo will continue to emphasize building capabilities in risk & controllership,
analytics, underwriting, IT, people and brand to ensure that your Company gives sustainable growth,

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
predictions may be “forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward-looking statements contained in this
document due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of
economic and political conditions in India, volatility in interest rates, new regulations and government
policies that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The
Company does not undertake to update these statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 8, 2020 @0 Urovwa %j/x,;‘f"j/

Shri. Manish Chokhani Shri. Neeraj Saxena
Chairman Managing Director and CEO

! hitpssy fwww thehindubusinessling. comy'ecenoimyy/covid 19-pandemic could-ead-to-4-par-cent loss-of -real-gdp-for
sil-research/aticle3 147 1055 acol

nca-Cl
< pttps:y//tradingeconaimics.comy/indiay sdp-growlh-annusal

o Mererw dbel o/ download/ Edu ar-ang-Trgining-Marc
111/ AISNE/ VIE
I0Cs.rhil.org,
& hitlps. S wierw niewyork

hitps./mbhrd, gov.in/sites/upl aa/mhrd/fil tat

AG-P018 Nl

2018 ol

= hflps:/ fmhrd gov ing/slles upload files/minrd/ las/sigtstics-new/ E5ak




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Members of Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the statement of
Profit and Loss and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2020, and its profit and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter paragraph

4. We draw your attention to Note 1.01(iii) to the financial statements, which deseribes the
management'’s assesement of the impact of the outbreak ol Curonavirus (Covid-19) on the
business operations of the Company. The Management believes that no adjustments are
required in the financial statements as it does not impact the current financial year, however,
in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as complete lock-down restrictions by
the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic
environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audi
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we

is materially
t or otherwise
conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other informat ion, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the

financial statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accoun ting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Com pany’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial

reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Anditing, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify du ring our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safegnards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our andit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31
» 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f)

(8)

14.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2020, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts - Refer notes 6 and 10. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as
at March 31, 2020;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020;

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754 N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACC4062

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 10, 2020
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Auxilo
Finserve Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Aet.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our aundit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
slatements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
Also refer paragraph 4 of the main audit report

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

e

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACC4062

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 10, 2020
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i. (a) The Company is maintain ing proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable,

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disciosed in Note 11 on fixed assets to the
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company,

ii. The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to
the Company.

i, The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 18¢
of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security in connection
with any loan taken by parties covered under section 185. Therefore, the provisions of
section 185 are not applicable to the Company. The Company is registered as Non-Banking
Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186,
except sub-section (1) of Section 186, of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Further,
the Company has not made any investment to the parties covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order in
respect of Section 186(1) is not applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73: 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, though there has been a slight delay in a one
case, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Also refer note 35 to the financial statements regarding
management's assessment on certain matters relatin g to provident fund,

Further, for the period March o1, 2020 to March 31, 2020, the company has paid Goods and
Service Tax and filed GSTR 3B (after the due date but) within the timelines allowed by
Government of India under the Notification No. 31/2020 — Central Tax dated April 03, 2020
on fulfilment of conditions specified therein.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs,
and duty of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

ountanis
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viii.

xii.

xiv.

nee sheet date,
The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer and further public
offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the monies raised by way of term loans have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 14 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.,

The Company has not entered into transactions with related parties under Sections 177 and
188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial

The Company has made a preferential allotment of shares during the year under review, in
compliance with the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been
used for the purpose for which funds were raised except as described below:.

Nature of securities Purpose for  which | Total Amount | Amount Un-utilized

funds raised Raised utilized for the | balance as

at

other purpose | Balance sheet date

Equity Shares Growth and expansion | Rs 660,932,295 | Nil Rs 660,932,295

in accordance with the
business plan adopted
l by the Company.

XvV.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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xvi.  The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Non-Banking Financial Institution.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/Ns00016

kA

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACC062

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 10, 2020



Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note
(Rupees) (Rupees)
ITY AND LIABILITI
Shareholders' Fund
{a) Share Capital 2 3,441,421,530 1,500,800,000
{b) Reserves and Surplus 3 183,186,612 (136,487,618)
Mon-Current Liabilities
{a) Long Term Borrowings 4 1,642,018,395 318,181,820
{b) Other Long Term Liabilities 5 63,922,296 4,643,617
{c) Long Term Provisions B 25,906,412 14,500,518
Current Liabilities
[a) Short Term Borrowings 7 900,000,000
{b) Trade Payables 8
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises, and "
Total tandin edit her
c! outstanding dues ::'Ifcr itars other than 33,569 664,802
micro and small enterprises
(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 785,637,975 235,942 805
(d) Short Term Provisions 10 1,891,983 633,618
TOTAL 6,144,018,772 2,838,879,562
ASSETS
MNon-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 11
(i} Praperty, Plant and Equipments (Tangible 114
Assets) 16,412,847 18,112,106
(i) Intangible Assets 11B 11,233,185 2,158,888
{iil} Intangible Assets under Development - 7,600,786
(&) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 29 6,405,302 -
{c) Long Term Loans and Advances 12 4,551,222, 130 2,570,353,355
{d) Other Non Current Assets 13 69,164,506 -
Current Assets
(a) Trade Recelvables 14 7,039,686 21,433,011
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 15 1,228,205,489 103,651,638
(c) Short Term Loans and Advances 16 199,668,240 91,318,345
(d) Other Current Assets- 17 54,667,387 24,251,433
TOTAL 6,144,018,772 2,838,879,562
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred te in our repert of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/NS00016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 118522

Mumbai
Jume 10, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Qustimamsi For=—

Company Secretary

Mumbai
June 8, 2020

Neeraj Saxena
MD & CEQ

Ty -

CFo

ghavendra Prabhu




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Year Ended Year Ended
Note March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rupees) (Rupees)
| Revenue
{a) Revenue From Operations 18 563,315,966 180,182,984
(b} Other Income 19 25,177,882 67,924,057
Total Revenue 588,493,848 248,107,041
Il Expenses
{a) Employee Benefits Expenses 20 160,950,970 128,823 585
{b} Finance Casts 21 172,005,283 39,869,411
(c) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 11 9,052,405 6,152,394
{d) Other Expenses 22 147,368,927 118,803,065
Total Expenses 489,467,585 293,648,455
Il Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1-11) 99,026,263 (45,541,414
Tax Expense
= Current Tax 6,068,100
- Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit) {6,405,302)
IV Total Tax Expenses {337,202) -
V Profit / (Loss) for the year (I1-1v) 99,363,465 (45,541,414)
VI Earnings / [Loss) per Equity Share of INR 10 each 27
Basic EP5 0.37 {0.35)
Diluted EPS 0.37 {0.35)

Significant Accounting Policies

1

The MNotes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.; 012754N/NS00016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 118522

Mumbai
Ve 10, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Chokhani
Director

Deefiika Thakur Chauhan

Company Secretary

Mumbai
June 8, 2020

Neera] Saxena
MD B CEOQ

ghavendra Prabhu
CFO




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

- Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) [Rupees)
A.Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) befors taxation 9,026,263 (45,541,414)
Adjustments fior :
Depreciation [ amortisation 9,052,405 6,152,394
Interest Expense 161,242,689 -
Interest Paid {163,016,460] .
Profit on Sale of Investments {10,028,082) (22,538,128)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 11,193 .
Contingent Provision for Standard Assets B 320427 10,148,251
COVID-19 Provision 1,965,503 s
Prowision for Retained interest on securitisation 550,589 :
Expense on account of increase in Authorised Share Capital 15,060,500 7,125,000
Prowision for Leave Encashment 347,555 588,798
Provision for Lease Equalisation 100,536 100,536
Provislon for Gratuity 1,375,208 994,111
Operating [Loss) / Profit before working capital changes 124,012,766 (42,970,392)
Changes in working capital :
Increase [ (decraase] in Other Long Term Liabilities 59,278,679 3,989,641
Increase [ (decrease) in Trade Payables 631,233) {2,B68,733)
Increase [ {decrease] in Other Current Liabilities 55,040,365 36,767,365
(Increase) [ decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances {1,976,344,497) (2,438,312,947)
(increase] [ decrease in Other Non Current Assets {69, 164,506) -
(increase] [ decrease in Trade Receivables 14,393,325 (21,071,808)
{increase) [ decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances 11048, 34%5,895) [88,026,486)
(increase) [ decrease in Other Current Assets {30,415,954) (16,962, 246)
| Cash generated from operations (1,932,180,950) {2,569,455,106)
Taxes pald {10,592.377) 11,213,908)
Net cash genrated from operating activities {1,342,773,327) © {2,570,669,014)
B.Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of tangiblefintangible assets induding Capital work-in- progress 18.,863,971) 112,117,154}
Sale of tangibdefintangible assets 26,121 B
Purchase of current investments (3,900,5%7,753] {2,245,000,000]
Redemgption of current investments oo o 3,910,625,835 2,367,538,128
Net cash generated from/[used in) investing activities ' 1,190,232 10,420,974
C.Cash fow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 2,650,000,000 1,400,000,000
Repayment of Borrowengs {1,979,734,849) =
Proceeds from issue of Non Convertible Debentures 250,000,000 - |
Proceeds from issue of Equity share capital (including securities premium) 1,160,932 195 750,000,000
Expense on account of increase in Authorised Share Capital 115,060,500) 17,125,000} |
Nt cash from financing activities 3,066,135,946 2,142,875,000
Net Increase J (Decrease] in Cash and cash equivalents (A)+[B)+{C) 1,124,553, 851 [417,373,040)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year 103,651,638 521,024,678
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,128,205,489 103,651,638
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet:
Cash on hand - -
Balances with scheduled banks - 1,228,205,489 103,651,638
TOTAL 1,22E,205 489 103,651,638
Naotes to the statement of cash flow :

1]The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard - 3 " Cash Flow Statement "as specified
under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014,

2)Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754M/NSO0016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sharad Agarwal Manish Chokhani Neeraj Saxena
Partner Director MO & CEQ
Membership No, 118522 'ha_
A o -
Ika kur Chauhan  Raghavendra Prabhu

Company Secretary CFO
Mumbai Mumbai

June 8, 2020




Auxilo Finseree Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

L SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Corporate Information

Auxila Finserve Private Limited (the ‘Company’) Is a regutered Non Banking Finance Company [NBFC) with Reserve Bank of India [REI). The Company has been
Incorporated on October 04, 2016, The Company received NBFC licenss from the Reserve Bank of india (REI on May 3, 2017. The Company has become Systernically
kmportant Non Deposit Accepting Mon Ranking Financial Company on lanuary 31, 2020

The main object of the Company is to originate, provide loans 1o students pursuing education and provide Infrastructure or working capital loan to educaticnal
institutions. Also Compaany provide anclllary services in refation Lo the said business activitios,

1.00 Basks of Accounting and Preparation of Financial statements
(i) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepated in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles i India under the historkeal cost convention on
accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the sccounting standards notified under 1he Companies
(Aecounting Standards) Rubes, 2006 (as amended], specified under section 133 and other rebevant pravidens of the Companies Act, 2013 and guidetines Bsued by
Reserve Bank of India for Systemically Impostant Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC.

All assens and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current a5 per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 1 [Qivdshon 1] to
the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisstion of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cazh
equivalents, the Company has aicertained its operating cyche as 12 months for the purpose of current = non-current classification of assets and liabilitses and othar
relevant provishons of the Companies Act, 2013 ,

(i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements bn conformity with Indian GAAP rogquires the Management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions considered in
the reported balances of assets and liabilites [inchuding contingent liabilities] and the reported income and expenses during the year, Management befieves that the
estimates used in preparation of the financlal statements are prudent and reasonabse. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences betwean
the actual results and the sstimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialize.

[iii) The moved coronaviries (COVID-19) pandemic continues 1o spread rapidly across the globe including India, On Manch 11, 2020, the COVID-19 gutbreak was
declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization. COVID-19 has taken its tall an o just human (e, but business and financial markets too, the extent
of which is currently indetermanabile. In many countries, ncluding India, there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns,
disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures. The Indian government announced @ strict
Iockdewn across the eountry to contain the spread of vieus

The Indian Government, the Reserve Bank of India and other regulators have announced various measures and relaxations acknowledging the current stuation to
ensure that there is enough liquidity in the hands of market participants and provided moratariums to the barrowers in termas of their repayments to the nancial
mstitutions.

The Company, being a NBFC, the main object of the Company is to originate, pravide and service basis ta students pursuing education and provide Infrastructure or
warking capital loan to educational institutions. The Company also provides ancillary serices in relation 1o the said business activity, The Company has made an
assesament of its lquidity position applyng stress scenarios. The Company bedieves that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arksing fram
COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. The Company has further axsessed the recoverability and carrying vabue of its assets COmprising
Loans and advances, Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets as at balance sheet date, and has conduded that there are no material adjustments
required in the financial Statements, other than those already considered. Howewer, the impact assessment of COVID-19 i a continuing process given the
Lncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to manitor amy material changes to future economic conditions,

1.02 Fixed Assets
l. Property, Mant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)
Froperty, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any,

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Preperty, Plant and Equipment are are recognised in the carrying amount of the fem if the recognition criteria are
met,

ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net
realisable value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss / write down s recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future econsmic benafits are expected from its use or disposal, The gain or loss
arksing on derecognation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation ks provided on a pro-rata basis an the straight-ling method over the estimated wseful lives of the assets, based on techmnicsl evaluation done by
management's expert taking into account the nature of the assets, their estimated period of use and the operating conditions. The deprecation charge far sach
pesiod is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unbess it i included i the carrying amount of any other asset. The wseful life, residual value and the
depreciation methad are reviewed atleast at each financial year end. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for praspectively
a5 @ change in accounting estimate.:

Category of Assets Useful Life
Furniture end Fixtures 10 years
Computers
Servers and Networks G years
End user devices like Laptops, Desktops etc 3 years
Leasehold Improvements Over the |lease period
Office Equipmant 5 ywars




Al Fingerve Private Limited
Hates to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

L Wntangible Assets:

Intangible assets are stated at scquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumalated impairment losses, if any, Intangible assets are amartsed on a
straight lne basks over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation pevied and the amartisation mothod sre reviewsd at beast at each fnancial year end, If the
expected uselul life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the
retirement of disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the ditference betwesn the net disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognized as income of expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated usefid lives of intangible assets are as follows:

| Category of Assets = Useful Life 3
[software | 5 years |

iii, Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated over the period of ane year frem capitalization,

L0 Revenue recognitlon

L. Income on Loan Transactions

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis except in case of non-performing assets where it is recognized, upon realizaticon, as per the Master Directions - Nan-
Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (the ‘Master Directions'lissued by Reserve Bank of
India. Overdue/ penal interest is recognized as income on realization. Charges for tervicing customer requests is recognized when there is no uncertainty regarding

the coliection of such revenue.

Pracessing Foe [net of taxes ) accounted fior on sccrual basis sxcept where the ultimate collection cannot be established with reasonable certainty.

. Income from securitisation of loans and recelvables

Securitized recenvables are derecognized In the baksnce sheet when they are sold Le, if they fully meet the true sale criteria [as considered by the Reserve Bank of
India). Gains (if any| arising on securitization of assets are recognised over the tenure of securities issied by Special Purpose Vehicles Trust (57

Company's conftrectual rights to recelve the share of future interest {Le. interest spread] In the translerred assets from the 5PV is capitalised at the present value as
interest Only (1] strip with a correspending liability created for unrealised gaing on loan transfer transactions. The excess interest spread on the securitisation
transactions ane recognised in the Statement of profit and loss onky when it is received in cash by the SPY Losses, if any, are recognised upfront

Income an retained interest in the assigned asset, if any, Is accounted on acorual basis except in case of nan-performing assets wherein interest income |5 recognised
on freceipt basis as per master directions,

. Loan Acguisition Expenses

Loan Acquisition Expenses such as referral payout, credit verification charges, risk containment unit charges, fiald investigation charges, telephone verification
expenses, etc are sxpensed off upfront.

. intome from Current and Long-term Investments

Gain f Loss from sale of units of mutual funds is sccounted on the trade date basis,

v. Income on Fixed Deposits

Interest income on Fived deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis ‘taking ko account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

i, Commission Income

Income from Commission inchides commission from the Autharized Dealers on the forelgn exchange business, income on sourcing of fued deposits to customens
from the Company's agreements references, fees on any marketing setivities; and i recognized in sccordance with the terms of the relavant sgreements,

105 Borrowing costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest and ancillary cost. Ancillary costs incurred for arrangement of borrowings such as processing fees, brokerage and debenture issue
expenie are amortized over the tenor of the borrewings.

106 Investments

Investmients that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments afe made, are classified as
current investmants. AN other investments are classified a3 long term investments which Includes the investments for Securised Loan as per minimum retention
requirements (MAR] &s per guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India, Current investrnents are carried at cost or falr value, whicheves i lower, Long-term
investments are casried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temparary, in the value of long-term investments, such
reduction being defermined and made for each investment individually, Current investments are carried at kower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis.

Lang term investments are stated at cost, Provision is made for diminution, other than temoorary, in the value of investments.




Auilo Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year emded March 31, 2020

107 Earning Per Share

The earnings per share has been computed in accordance with Accounting Standards (AS = 20} on, *Earnings Per Share” and is also shown in the Statement of Frofit
and Loss,

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period, For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profi or loss for the peried atiributable o equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares sutitanding during the period s adjusted for the effects of all dikitive potential equity shares,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to eguity thareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outitanding during the period s adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eqguaty shates,

The cabculation of diluted earnings per share doss not assumes conversion, exercise, or other issue of potential ordinary shares that would have an antidibutive effect
on earnings per share.

LO8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, deposits with banks with original maturities of less than 3 months and current investments
readily comvertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value,

1.09 Lease

Lenses in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessors are classified a3 operatng leases. Payments made undes
operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1,10 Segment Reporting

The Company is an NBFC and operates in only one segment namely "Education Loans®. Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Managing Director cum Chiel executive officer (MD & CED:| of the Company has been identified as
CODM wha assesses the financial performance and position of the company, and makes strategic decisions.

1.11 income Tan

Tax expense for the period, compeising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determénation of the net profit or loss for the penod. Current tax s
measisred at the amount expected to be paid to the tax autharities in sccordance with the taxation baws prevailing i the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred tax i recognized for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred (ax B35ets are recogrised
and earried forward ondy to the extent that there is & reasonable certainty that sufficient future laxable income will be availabbe agast which such deferred tax
pssels can be realised. Deferred fax assels and Rabilitbes are measured usng the tax rabes and tax lows that have been enacted or substantively enactod by the
Balance Shewt date. In situations, where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or casry fprward losses under tax laows, all deferred tax assets are recognisod only
to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. At each B8alance Sheet date, the
Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax @ssets and current tax Habilties are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
the asset and the kability on a net basis. Deferved tax assets and deferred tax Babilities are offset when there is 2 legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabiities reprosenting current tax and whare the defermed tax assets and the deferred tax labilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation
laws.

112 Employes benefits
i) Provident and ather Funds

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authosities, where the Company has no further obligations.
Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any Turther obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly
basis.

) Gratuity and Compensated Absences

The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 The liabiity for the
defined benefit plan of Gratuity i determined on the basks of an actuarial valuation by an independent actusry at the year end, which is calculated using Projected
Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gaingflosses are recognized i the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise,

The employees of the Company afe entited 1o leave a3 per the leave policy of the Company. The Eability in respect of unutilized leave balances is determined on the
basis of an actuarial valuation by an independent actuary at the year end, wheih is calculated wsing Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains/losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the vear in which thev arise,

fil) Emplayee Stack Optlans Plans (E50Ps)

Equity settled stock opthons granted under “Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOF 2017 Plan]” are accounted for as par the accounting treatment prescribed by the
Guidance Mote on Employee Share-based Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, The intrinsic value of the option being excess of value
of the underlying share as determined by an independent valuer immediately prior to date of grant over its exercise price is recognised as deferred employee
compensation with a credit to employee stock option outstanding account. The defesred employee compensation is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on
strakght line basis over the vesting period of the option, The options that lapse are reversed by a credit to employee compensation expense, equal 1o the amortized
portion of value of Bpsed portion and credit to defarred employes compensation expencs equal to the un-amortised portion
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113 impairment of assets

Pursuant to “AS2H. imparment of Aswet™ specified under section 133 of the Companses A1 2013 read with Rule 7 under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 |34 amended) far determéning impairment in carrying amount of flaed asset, the Company assesses ol sach Balance Sheet date whether there & an
Indicathon that an asset may be impaired. Il any such indication existy, the Company estimates the recoverable amouwnt of the aset. If such recoverable amount of
thir asset or the recaverable amount of the cash generating unil to which the asset belongi is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount b reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and s recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, If at the Balance Sheot date there is an
indication that if a previously assessed impairment koss no longer exists, the recoverable amownt i reaviessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

L.14 Pravisions and Contingent Liakilities

Provisions are recagnised when there is a present obligstion as a result of a past event and, it |3 probable that an cutflow of resources embodying etconomic benefits
will be reguired to settle the obligation and there is a relisble estimate of the amount of the obiligation, Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
eapenditure required to settbe the present obligation st the Balance sheet date ond are not discounted to its present value. Provisions inthude provisions for standard
assets and non-performing assets based on gubdelnes issued by Reserve Bank of India,

Contingent Habilithes are disclosed when there ks a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be cenfirmed only on the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obiligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannol be made, is termed a3 a contingent lability,

1.15 Transter to Reserve Fund

A5 per section 45-0C of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 [the RBI Act], the company b5 transferring an amownt of 20 per cent of its net profitif any] to 8 resere
fund before declarmg any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund s permitted only for the purposes specified by RBL
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Notes to the Financial Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)
2 Share Capital
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) [Rupees)
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 (Previous Year: 225,000,000} Equity Shares of INR 10 each 20,000,000,000 2.250,000,000
8,000,000 {Previous Year: 8,000,000] Opticnally Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each B0, 000,000 ED,000,000
10,080,000,000 2,330,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
344,062,153 (Previous Year: 150,000,000} Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 3,440,621,530 1,500,000,000
8,000,000 {Previous Year: 8,000,000) Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each, Partly paid up 800,000 800,000
3,441,421,530 1,500,200,000
|a) Recanciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amount Amount
- No of shares [Rupees) No of shares [Rupees)
Balance at the beginning of the year
Equity Shares 150,000,000 1,500,000,000 75,000,000 750,000,000
Dptionally Convertible preference shares (partly paid up) B, 000,000 800,000 8,000,000 BOD,000
\Shares lssued during the year
Equity Shares 194,062,153 1,940,621,530 75,000,000 750,000,000
Optionally Convertible preference shares {partly paid up) = = . £
Balance a1 the end of the year
Equity Shares 344,062,153 3,440,621,530 150,000,000 1,500,0:00,000
Optionally Convertible preference thares (partly paid up) 8,000,000 800,000 8,000,000 BO00,000

|b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares

The Campany has anly one class of equity shares having a par vabue of INR 10 per share. Each hodder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend,
if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except In case of interim dividend. In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehaolder.

Balrampur Chini Mills Limited and Elme Advisors LLP shall not Transfer, any of the Securities of the Company held by them to any Person without the prior writlen
consent of ICIC) Bank Limited for a period of three years from the date of the allotment of shares to ICIC] Bank Limited (the ‘closing date’) in case such transfer
riesults in (i} their aggregate equity shareholding in the Company going bebow fifty-one per cent of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company (calculated on a
fully diluted basis) or [ii) there is change in the propartion of shareholding inter-se between them as on the closing date.

The company has three classes of Optionally Convertible preferance shares [OCPS) having a face vale of INL!._ﬂ.EI'I' share sach,

Amount paid up per Amount

Type of share Mo, of Shares share {Rupees)
0.001% Class A DCPS 2,666,667 (.09 Paise 240,000
0.001% Class B OCPS 2,666,667 0.10 Paise 266,667
0.001% Class C OCP5 2,666,666 0.11 Paise 293,333
Total 800,000

1. The OCPS shall carry cumadlative right of dividend at a fiwed rate of 0.001% per year and such dividend shall have a priority over any dividend rights of the equity
shares of the Company.

1. In the event of winding up of the Company, the holder of QCPS will be entitled to a preferential right of return of the amount pakd-up on the OCPS due on the date
of winding-up.

3. The OCPS shall be non-participating in the surpdus funds and profits, on winding up which may remain after the entire capital has been paid.

4, The holder of OCPS will not have any voting rights with respect to the preference share capital represented by the OCPS, except as specifically provided wnder
section 47 (2) of the Comgpanbes Act, 2013.

5. Conversion: Each QCPS shall be convertible into 1 lonel eouity share ["Conversion Ratio™) subiect to fulfilment of aoolicable conditions.

{e] List of sharehelders holding more than 5% Share capital

March 31, 2020 Biarch 31, 2009
Armount Amount

Percentage {Rupees) Percentage [Rupees]
Equity Shares:
Balrampur Chini Mills Limited 45.05 1,550,000,000 £0.00 750,000,000
iﬂme Advisors LLP (Erstwhile known as Payash Solar Energy 45.05 1,550,000,000 49.50 742,500,000
lFl“u LLP)
IICIC) Bank Limited 24 340,621 530 .
|Preference Shares:
Neera| Saxena 100.00 £00,000 100.00 800,000
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{d] Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Paid up share capital

{i] During the year, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was inereased 1o INR 20,080,000,000 (Previous year INR 2,330,000,000] divided into INR
20,000,000,000 Equity Share Capital (Frevious year INR 2.250,000,000 ) and INR 80,000,000 Preference Share Capital (Previgus Year INR BO,000,000].

(i} During the year, the Company has ssued fully paid up equity shares ol Rs. 10 each for cash, the details of such issuance are as follow:

Face Value Issue Price Year ended Year ended
Name of party [in Rupees] {in Rupees) Aarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Akash Bhanshali 10 10 750,000 375,000
10 10 74,250,000 37,125,000
Advisors
G 5l 10 15 5,000,000
10 10 75,000,000 37,500,000
Balr ini Mills Lvd
-ampur Chini o T oD
ICHICI Bank Umited 10 15 34,062,153 -
|Total 194,062,153 75,000,000
(e} Shares reserved for issue undar options
Refer note 23C for datalls of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Option Plan.
3 Reserves and Surplus
March 31, 2020 March 31, 201%
) (Rupees) {Rupees)
Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year .
Add- Premium recetved on equity shares issued during the year 220,310,765 -
Balance at the end of the year 220,310,765 - |
Reserve Fund under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,300 14,300
Transfered from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 19,872,653 .
Balance at the end of the year 19,886,993 14,300
surplus/[Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (136,501,918} [910,960,504)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 99,363,465 {45,541,414)
Lass: Transfer to Reserve Fund under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, {19,872,693) -
|Batance at the end of the year {57,011,146) {136,501,918)
Total Reserves and Surplus 183,186,612 [136,487 618
4 Long Term Borrowings
M . March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| = (Rupees) (Rupees)
Secured
Term boan from banks (Refer note 4a bebow] 1,350,546,967 318,181,820
Term boan from financial institutions (Refer note 4a below) 112,500,000 -
Unsecured
Hon-Convertible Debentures (Refer note 4b) 178,571,428
1,642,018,395 318,181,820
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43 Repayment terms of Term loan from banks and financial institutions

~ Masch 31, 2020 March 31,2019
- {Rupees) (Rupees]
Repayable within 1 year 606,818,184 181,818,180
Repayable within 1 year to 3 years 986,363,638 318181820
Repayable within 3 years and above A77,083,329 -
2,070,265,151 500,000,000
Rate of interest for above borrowing s ranging from 9.70% to 11% [Previows year: 11%)
All term loans from Banks and financial institutions are secured by a pari pasu charge, by way of
Iypothecation of present and future receivables
4b Repayment terms of Non convertible debentures (Unlisted and Unsecured)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) {Rupees)
Repayable within 1 year 71,428,572 .
Repayable within 1 year to 3 years 142,857,144 -
Repayable within 3 years and above 35,714,284
Rate of interest for above borrowing is ranging from 11.25% to 14.10% [Previous year: 11%) 250,000,000 -
5 Other Long Term Liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Advance receivad from customers 6,557,589 4643617
Unraalised gain on securitisation {Refer note 5a) 57,364,707 %
63,922,296 4,643,617
3. Unrealised gain on securitisation comprises of future interest receivable under par structure of
Lecuritisation
& Long-Term Provisions
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- [Rupees) {Rupees)
Emplayes Benefits
- Gratuity [Refer note 23) 1,895,300 1525327
= Compensated Absences 1,273,378 990,741
Provision against Standard Assets 18,047,457 10,237,626
COVID-19 Provision 1,847,563 -
Provishon for Retalned Interest on securitisation 550,589 2
Lease Equalisation Reserve 1,288,125 1746824
25,906,412 14,500,518
7 Short Term Borrowings
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Unsecured
|Inter Corporate Deposits - (Refer note 7a) - 300,000,000
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7a Repayment terms of Inter Corporate Deposits

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
. e ___{Rupees) B (Rupees) |
10% Inter Corparate Deposit payable by September 21, 2019 100,000,000
10% Inter Corporate Deposit payable by September 1B, 2019 170,000,000
10% inter Corporate Deposit payable by August 31, 2019 50,000,000
10% Inter Caorporate Deposit payable by August 20, 2019 180,000,000
10% Inter Corporate Deposit payable by July 10, 2019 180,000,000
10% Inter Corporate Deposit payable by June 29, 2019 180,000,000
= 900,000,000
& Trade Payables
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rupees) {Rupees)
Total putstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
I Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and small enterprises
=Creditors for Expenses 33,569 664,802
33,569 664,802
9 Other Current Liabilities
N o March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) (Rupees]
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowing
Secured
- Term loans from banks [Refer note 4a) 569,318,184 181,818,180
- Term loans from finencial institutions |Refer note 4a) 37,500,000 -
Unsecured
- Non Convertible Debentures [Refer note 4b) 71,428,572
Advance received fram customars 55,161,636 29,854,365
Amount payable under securitisation transaction 19,844,016 -
Statutory Remittances {Taxes, Contributions to PF, Profession tax etc.} 5,BB0,967 4,849 842
Interest accrued but not due on
= Term loans 2,003,115 2,143,750
- Finangial institutions 660,205 .
= Hon Convertible Debentures 69,159 .
= Inter Corporate Deposits - 1,362,500
Other Payables
= Provision for Fixed Assets - 75,538
= Provision for Expenses 9,909,501 5,330,087
- Provision for Employee Banefits 13,862,620 9,508,543
785,637,975 135,942,805
10 Short-Term Provisions
[ March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees} {Rupees)
|Employee Benafits
= Gratuity (Refer note 23) 11,175 5.940
- Compensated Absences 257,475 182,117
|Provision against Standard Assets 945,158 435,561
COVID-19 Prowvision 117,940 =
Lease Equalisation Reserve 555,135 "
1,691,963 633,618
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Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Maotes to the Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2020 jeontinued)

12 Long-Term Loans and Advances
. . March 31, 2020  March 31,2009
| (Rupees) (Rupees) |
Receivables under Financing Activity (Refer note 12a)
Secured, considered Good 2,570,087 ,654 1,501,254,917
Unsecured, considered Good 1,905,188,153 1058111564
Retained interest on securitisation
Secured, considered Good 15,590,384
Unsecured, considered Good 11,939,054
|Others (unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 8,358,436 6,230,936
Prepaid expenses 216,893,703 3,372,060
Advance Tax and Tax Daducted at Source [(Net of provision of INR 6,068,100 (Previous year Nil]] 5,868,136 1,343,858
Securitised consideration receivable 1,296,610 -
4551222130 |  2,570,35335%
12a. Secured loans are secured to the extent of collateral value consisting of immovable property and/or fised
desposits
13 Dther Non Current Assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2009
[Rupees) {Rupees)
Unsequred, Considered Good
Fixed Deposit [Refer note 13a) 11,799,793
Securitisation deferred consideration recervable (Refer note 135} 57,364,707
) . -
13a. Fixed deposit has been earmarked towards credit enhancement towards securitization transaction
[Previous Year: Nilh
13b. Securitisation deferred consideration receivable comprises of Company's share of future interest strip
recenvable in case of a par structure secufitied deals
14 Trade Recelvables
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- P __ |Rupees) [Rupees)
Unsecured, conshdered good
Dutstanding for more than sik months =
‘Other
Commission Receivable and others 7,039,686 21,433,011
7,039,685 21,433,011

Chartered Acgountants

B, %
% ﬁ"’i’mzrammw“l




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Hotes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

15 Cash and Bank Balances
R March 31, 2020 March 31, 2015
B (Rupees) (Rupees)
(Cash and Cash equivalents
Cagh on Hand
Bank Balance in
“Current Account 178,205,489 103,651,638
~Fixed Deposit {with original maturity of less than 3 months) 1,050,000,000 .
1,228,205,489 103,651,638
16 Short -Term Loans and Advances
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) [Rupees)
Current maturities of long term receivables under financing activity (Refer note 12a)
Secured, congidered Good 141,867,217 65,414,454
Unsecured, considered Goad 51,801,023 25872891
Others (unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits - 31,000
194,668,240 91,318,345
17 Other Current Assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) [Rupees)
secured, considered good
Interest accrued and due - Recevables under Financing Activity 431,385 =
Interest accrued but not due - Receivables under Financing Activity 20,555,054 10,366,957
‘Unsequred, considered good
Interest accrued but not due - Fixed Deposit 443,914
Interest accrued but not due - Fixed Deposit (Refer note 13a) 7.265 -
Interest accrieed but not due - Receivables wunder Financing Activity 14,183,321 7,238,550
GST Receivable [net) 3,933,597 1,335,161
Prepaid expenses 14,206,518 4,150,765
Advances to Vendors 796,333 .
Advances to Employees 110,000 120,000
54,667,387 24,251,433

ri
oSt Chartered Ac‘_%
TLPIN AAC-S0p 7~

Chartered Acgountants
&
ZRN 01275 annsaoRl




Auxilg Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 [continued)

18 Revenue From Operations
. "~ Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Interest Income on :
loans 514,515,993 142,796,040
Securitised assets 5,490,076 .
Other financial services
-Processing Fees and ather charges 43,309,897 37,386,944
563,315,966 180,182,984
19 Other Income
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Interest on Fixed Deposits 516,589 5.357,117
Profit on sale of current investments 10,028,082 22538,128
Commission and other Income 14,633,211 40,028,812
25,177,882 67,924,057
20 Employee Benefits Expenses
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rupees) {Rupees]
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 149 650,645 120,498,490
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds (Refer note 23) 6,615,200 5.017,937
Gratuity (Refer note 23) 1,379,208 994,171 |
Compensated Absences 347,595 588,798
Staff Weifare Expenses 2,957,922 1,724,189
160,950,970 128,823,585
Finance Costs
Year Ended " Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Interest Expenses
- on Term loans from banks 118,966,683 25,766,250
- an Term leans fraom Finanicial institutions 7,853,425 -
- an Inter corporate deposit 30,657,212 12,226,712
- on Mon Convertible debentures 3,765,369 *
Others borrowing costs 10,852,594 1,876,449
172,095,283 39,869,411
=




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

22 Other Expenses

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Advertisement, Publicity and Business promotion 27,254,250 35,931,005
Rent [Refer note 24) 15,953,092 14,072,989
Rates and Taxes (Refer note 22a) 15,588,410 7,512,668
Auditors' remuneration;

Audit Fees 1,900,000 1,400,000

Out of Pocket Expenses 37,083 43,600

Other Services 400,000 400,000

Goods and Services Tax on above 207,000 162,000
Legal and professional fees 14,099,338 9,803,263
Computer, Communication and Internet Expenses 29,891,313 12,973,878
Repairs and Maintenance 5,548,112 4,391 482
Printing and stationery expenses 1,745 818 2,073,986
Travelling and conveyance 6,164,161 5,330,578
Business Sourcing Expenses 16,274,350 13,126,616
Praovision for Standard Assets 8,320,427 10,148,251
COVID-19 Provision (Refer note 22b) 1,965,503 .
Provision for Retained interest on securitisation 550,589 .
Directors Sitting Fees 654,000 784,800
Loss on Sake of Fixed Assets (net) 11,193 -
Other expenses B0a 228 647 949

147,368,927 118,803,065

22a. includes INR 15,060,500 (Previous Year: INR 7,125,000) for stamp duty on account of increase in authorised share capital
22b. COVID-19 pravision is created in lines with guidance as per RBI Circular RBI/2015-20/220 DOR.Ne.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 on
“COVID19 Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning™ dated April 17, 2020




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (contin ued)

23 Employee Benefits Expenses

A) Defined Contribution Plan (Provident Fund and National Pension Scheme)

Amount of INR 6,615,200 (Previous Year INR 5,017,937) is recognised as expense and included in Employee Benefit Expenses under note

20 in the statement of Profit and Loss.

B) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity

occurs upan completion of five years of service,

Details of the non funded post retirement benefit plans for its employees are given below which is as certified by the actuary.

Particulars

Assumptions

Rate of Discounting

Rate of Salary Increase next year
Rate of Salary Increase post next year
Rate of Employee Turnover

Mortality Rate During Employment

Changes in present value of obligations (PVO)
PVO at the beginning of the year

Interest cost

Current Service Cost (INR)

Past Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial {Gain] /Loss on obligation (INR)

PVO at the end of year [INR)

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of year
Expected return on Plan Assets
Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial Gain (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets at end of year

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) recognized

Actuarial (Gain) /Loss on obligation for the year

Actuarial Gain (loss) on plan assets for the year

Actuarial Gain/{Loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account
PVO at end of year (INR)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status (INR)

Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/{Loss)

Unrecognized Past Service costs-non vested benefits

Met Asset/(Liability) recognized in the balance sheet

For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2020 __March 31, 2019
Gratuity t :
6.24% 7.64%
0.00% 5.00%
5.00% 5.00%
15.00%| 10.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality[2006-08) Uit

1,531,267
116,989
1,166,321

95,898
2,910,475 |

95,898

95,898

(2,910,475)

(2,910,4 ?SJI

537,096
42,162 |
833,723

118,285
1,531,267

118,286

118,286

(1,531,267)

(1,531,267)




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account

Current Service Cost (INR) 1,166,321 833,723
Interest cost 116,989 42,162
Past Service Cost . -
Unrecognized Past Service costs-non vested benefits -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the year (INR) 95,898 118,286
Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 1,379,208 994,171
Movements in the Liability recognized in Balance Sheet

Opening Net Liability 1,531,267 537,096
Expenses as above (INR) 1,379,208 994,171
Contribution paid - -
Closing Met Liability {INR) 2,910,475 1,531,267
Experience adjustments

Experience adjustmetns on plan liabilities 248,441 275,225
Experience adjustmetns on plan assets ) . = )

C) Emplyee Stock Options Plans (ESOPs)

The Company has currently a single Employee Stock Options Plan ('ES0P 2017 Plan') in force. The Plan provides that the employees of the
Company are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that vest in a graded manner. Once vested, the options may be
exercised within a period of 10 years,

The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans as per the accounting
treatment prescribed by Guidance Mote on Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
(ICAl). Compensation cost is measured by the excess, if any, of the market price of the underlying stock over the exercise price as
determined under the option plan. The fair market vailue of the underlying shares has been determined based on an independent valuer's
report as the Company is not listed on the stock exchanges.

Compensation cost, if any, is amortised over the vesting period. The compensation cost charged to Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil

(Previous Year: Rs. Nil) since the exercise price is equal to the fair value of the equity share as on the date of grant.

The Movement of stock options for ESOP 2017 Plan is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,500,000 8,750,000
Granted during the year 405,000 1,150,000
Forfeited/Expired during the year {340,000) {400,000)
Exercised during the year . -
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,565,000 9,500,000
Excersiable at the end of the year - -
|Weighted Average Exercise price _1o.08 10.04
Vesting period March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
3 - 4 years from grant date 3,350,000 3,135,000
4 - 5 years from grant date 3,087,000 3,135,000
5 - & years from grant date 3,128,000 3,230,000
Total 9,565,000 5,500,000




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {continued)

Fair Value Methodology

The fair value of options have been estimated on the date of grant using Black-5choles model. Key Assumptions used in Black-Scholes
model for calculating fair value as on the date of grant are as follows:

Particulars ESOP 2017 ESOP 2017 ESOP 2017 ESOP 2017
Grant Date April 19, 2019 October 24, 2018 July 25, 2018 January 24, 2018
Share price 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Exercise price 11.48 10.53 10.42 10.00
Risk-free interest rate T42% 7.78% 1.78% 7.44%
Expected life of the option 3 years to 5 years 4 years to & years 4 years to 6 years| 3.5 years to 6 years
Expiry Date (from vesting date) 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility 32.20% 32.34% 32.34% 33.50%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
Fair Value of Options 3,50 to 4.84 399t05.03 3.93to 4.96 35t04.76

Had the compensation cost for the stock options granted under ESOP 2017 plan been determined based on the fair value approach, the
Company's net loss and loss per share would have been as per the pro-forma amounts indicated below:

Particulars 1 Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[Rupees) (Rupees)
Net Profit / (Loss) : (as reported) 99,363,465 (45,541,414)
Less: Met Impact of incremental cost under fair value approach (8,608,476) (8,387,468)
Net Profit / (Loss) : (pro-forma) 90,754,989 (53,928,882)
Basic Profit / (Loss) per share (as reported) (in INR) 0.37 (0.35)
Basic Profit / (Loss) per share (pro-forma) (in INR) 0.24 (0.42)
Diluted Profit / (Loss) per share (as reported) {in INR) 0.37 (0.35)
Diluted Profit / (Loss) per share (pro-forma) (in INR) 0.34 {0.42)

Chartered

Twuntanls
T8N 012754 imst>




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

24 Operating Leases as Lessee

I. The Company has taken various office premises under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are generally non-
cancellable for a initial lock in period, The Company has paid refundable Interest free Security Deposit of INR 8,358,436 (Previous Year: INR
6,261,936 )in respect of certain leases,

il. Lease Payments recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss with respect to all operating leases included under Rent is INR 15,953,092
{Previous Year: INR 14,072,989)

iil. With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum Lease Payments March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)

|Not later than one year = 17,426,245 12,521,144

Later than one year but not later than five years 21,252,633 23,416,442

Later than five years = .

25 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in only one segment namely "Education Loans” hence there are no separate reportable segments under
Accounting Standard 17 'Segment Reporting' specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 7 under the
Coempanies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended).

26 Micro And Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

There are no Micro and Small Scale Business Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days
as at March 31, 2020, This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act ,
2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rupees) (Rupees)
|Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at = =
year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day - -
during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the . .
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already . -
made
Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years =
27 Earnings/ (Loss) per share
Particul March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
S Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (Rupees) 99,263 465 99,363,465 {45,541 414) (45,541 414)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 266,203,761 266,283,980 129,349,316 129,420,316
Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share (Basic and
0.3733 0.3731 0.35 0.35
Diluted) (Rupees) W s
Nominal value of an Equity Share [Rupees) | 10 10 10 10

Since the Company has incurred boss during the previous financial year, Diluted EPS was in previous year same as Basic EPS, as further
impact would have been antidilutive.

28 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
i) Contingent Liabilities : Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under securitisation arrangements (including cash
collaterals) - INR 11,734,389 (Previous Year: NIL)
i) Capital Commitments : Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed is INR 549,576 (Previous Year: INR
1,281,500)
jii) Undisbursed commitments in respect of the Education loan agreements amount to INR 665,947,703 (Previous Year: INR 509,107, 640).
However the Company has unconditional rights under the loan agreements to cancel these commitments at any time.




Auxila Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Finanglal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 [cantinaed)

29 Deferred Tax Assots [Net)

As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
[Rupees) [Rupeas)®
1Dei‘eﬁut Tax Liability
Drepreciation | i ] 317,894
461,273 127,894
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Gratulty 732,566 ¥98,110
Prowision for Leave Encashmaent 385,316 307,543
Contingen provision for standard assets 4,771,693 2775009
Cowid 19 prevision 404,717 '
Lease Equalisation Reserve 464,581 454,174
Amartization of Preliminary Expenses 17,302 35,745
6,866,575 3,970,620
|Deferred Tax Assets [Net) 5,405,301 3,642,726

*During the earlier years the company did not recognise the deferred tas assets bn liew of carried forward taxabie loases and unabsorbed tax

depredilsan.
30 Related Party Disclosures

Entities [ Persons having Significant Influence Balrampur Chini Mills Ltd,

Elme Advisars LLP {Erstwhile known as Payash Solar Energy Park LLP)

Alash Bhanshall
Key Management Personnel

ii] Trandactions with related parties as mentioned above:

Neeraj Sawena, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Particulars

| Entities / Persons having Significant

Total

“Bgril 1, 3015 10 | April 1, 201810
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

—MRupees] [ (Rupees)
11,278,740 11,278,740
B25,000,000 475,000,000
B17,500,000 371,250,000
7,500,000 3,750,000

Key Management Personnel
o nBuence |
April 1, 3019 te | Apnll, J0181a | Apnl I, 2019 1o March April 1, 018 to
Mareh 31, 2000 March 51, 2018 i1, 2330 March 31, 2019
{Rupees] {Fupees) [Rupees) LT T -
1. Managerial Remuneration * - 11,278,740 11.2?1,?‘);
2. ssuance of share capital (fncl. Share premium)
Baframpur Chini Ml Limited 825,000,000 575,000,000 -
Eime Advisars LLP {Erstwhile known as Payash Solar
. Park LLP) E17.500.000 371,350,000
Akash Bharshal 7,500,000 3,750,000 -
- S 1
* Incantives | bonus / gratuity are considered on payment basis.
31 The Company has process wheneby peridically all kang term contracts are i for the r i far

loszes, At the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that

adequate provisions as required under any law [ accouting standards for material foreseable losses on such on such long term contracts bas been made in the books of accounts.




Auxllo Finserve Private Limited

Motes to the Financlal Statements far the year ended March 31, 2020 {continued)

32

322

323

Disclosure as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit

taking Company and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio ([CRAR]

Particulars

As at March 31,

As ot March 31,
2019

(i] CRAR (%)

73.95%

50.00%

[ji] CRAR -Tier | Capital (%)

73.49%

49.60%

{iii) CRAR -Tier 1l Capital (%)

0.46%

ibv) Amount of subsrdinated debt raised as Tier || capital

iw) Ameunt raised by lssue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

Rating Agency: CARE Ratings Limited (formerly known as Credit Analysis & Research Limited)

Date of Rating Long Term Bank Facilities

Mon Convertible Debentures

August 12, 2019 CARE A- MNA

[September 27, 2019 CARE A- N

December 16, 2019 |CARE A-

NA
[February 7, 2020 lcaRe A |CARE A-

Provision and contingencies

Break up of ‘Provisions and contingencies’ shown under the head
lexpenses in Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended March
31, 2020
{Rupaes)

Year ended March
31, 2019
(Rupees)

Provisions for depreciation on investment

|Provisian towards NPA

|Provision made towards tax expenses [net]

6,068,100

Other provision and contingencies [with details]

Provision for employee benefits

- Compensated absences

347,895

588,798

— Gratuity

1,379,208

994,171

Provision for Retained interast on securitisation

550,589

10,285,930

10,148,251

[Provision for standard assets including COVID-18 provision

ol st Ch
0 WP




Aunilo Finserve Private Limited
Motes to the Financlal Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2020 {continued)

324

Concentration of advances, exposures and NPAS;

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2020
(Rupees)

Year ended March
31, 2019
(Rupees)

Concentration of Advances

670,731,012

524,930,514

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers
% of Advances to twenty largest barrowers to Total Advances

14%

20%

I|!:|:mngrm-m:l:m of Exposures [on limit basis or outstanding basis whichever is
higher]

Total Exposuri to twenty largest borrowers | customers

GE8, 780, 760

524,930,514

15%

20%

% of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers [ customers 1o Total Exposure
|Concentration of NPAs

| Taotal Exposure to top four NPA accounts

Sector-wise NPAs

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2020
{Rupees)

Year ended March
31, 2019
[Rupees)

|Sector-wise NPAs (% of NPAs / Total Advances in that sector)

| Agriculture & allied activities

Micro, small and medium enterprises

Corporate borrowers

Services

Unsecured personal loans

Auto loans

Other personal loans
Education loans

Education Infrasturcture loans

Maovement of NPAS

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2020
{Rypees)

Year ended March
31, 2019
[Rupees)

i} Met NPAs te Net Advances (%)

[ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Opening balance

Additions during the yaar

Reductions during the year

Clogsing balance

i) Movement of Net NPAs

Opening balance

| Additions during the year

Reductions during the year

Closing balance

v} Movement of provisions for NPAs [excluding provisions on standard assets)

Opening balance

Provisions made during the year

[Write-off] [ write-back

Closing balance

Disclosure of customer complaints:

Particulars

Year ended March
31,2020

Year ended March
| 31,2019

|Mo. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

56

47

No. of complaints received during the year
Mo. of complaints redressed during the year

56

[t0. of complaints pending at the end of the year
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Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

32.7 Public disclosure on liguidity risk as on 31st March 2020

(i)

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

sr

Number of Significant counterparties*

Amount in Rupees

% of Total Deposits

% of Total Liabilities

1

significant counterparties - Five (5]

2,320,265,151

37.8%

*Significant counterparty s defined os o single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting fn aggregate for mare than 13
of the NBFC-MDSI's totol Nobilities

{ii)

Top 20 large deposits {amount in Rs. crore and % of total deposits) - NIL

(i} Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. crore and % of total borrowings)
Sr Borrowings Amount in Rupees % of Total Borrowings
1 Banks 1,920,265,151 3%
2 Financial Institutions 150,000,000 6%
3 Mon Convertible Debentures 250,000,000 11%
{iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/praduct
Sr Mame of instrument/product Amount in Rupees % of Total Liabilities
1 [Term Loans 2,070,265,151 34%
Mon Convertible Debentures 250,000,000 4%
v] Stock Ratios
St |Mame of instrument/product % of Total public funds | % of Total Liab. / Assets
a |Commercial papers il il
b |Non-convertible debentures (original Nil Mil
maturity of less than 1 year)
¢ |Other short-term liabilities Nil 12.8%
(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

The Company’s Board of Directors assume the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk.

Risk Management Committee |'RMC') shall have overall responsibility of evaluating liquidity risks faced by the entity
and will act as per mandate of the Board in managing the liquidity risk and adherence to this framework through itsalf
and the various sub-committess reporting into it.

Asset Liability Committee ('ALCO') reparts inta the RMC which in turn is supported by Asset Liability Management

Support Group in managing the overall liquidity risk of the Company.

*  Mumbal




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

32.8 The Company has no disclosure to make in respect of the following items as the relevant items are either Nil or
Not Applicable
Investments: Gross Value of Investments

Provision for Depreciation on Investments
Met Value of Investments
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

Derivatives: Forward Rate Agreement [ Interest Rate Swaps

Notional Principal of Swap Agreements

Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements
Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

The fair value of the swap book

Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives
Motional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year
Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as at March 31, 2020

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective”
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”

Quantitative Disclosures

Derivative (Notional Principal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions

Credit Exposure

Unhedged Exposure

Securitisation: Details of non-performing financial assets purchased
No. of accounts purchased during the year
Apggregate outstanding

Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Details of non-performing financial assets sold
No. of accounts sold

Aggregate outstanding
Aggregate consideration received

Exposure to Real
Estate Sector Residential Mortgages

Commercial Real Estate
Investrnents in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Exposure to Capital
Market

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- oriented

mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other, securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in

shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds;

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the
advances;

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers;

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Concentration of
Deposits

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBFC

Other Disclosure

During the year, there are no penalties levied by RBI / other regulators

During the year, Companys has not postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties.
During the year, Companys has not made any draw down of reserves,

Company does not have any overseas joint venture [ subsidiary.

There are no SPVs sponsored by the Company

There is no financing of parent company products during the current year and in previous year.

The Company has not exceeded single borrower limit and nor has exceeded the group borrower lirmit.
The Company is not registered under any other regulator other than Reserve Ba nk of India

The Company does not have any overseas assets.
The Company had no foreign currency exposures or credit exposures in foreign currency at financial year end 31st

March 2020
There is no exposure against the intangible securities

untants

£y
N 01275450002




Auxllo Finserve Private Limited
Motes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {continued)

(ANl amounts in Rupees)
329 Disclosures relating to Securitisation
Particulars As ot March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
1 Mo of SPVs spansored by the NBFC for secunitisation traniactions 1
2 [Total amount of securitised assets a5 por books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC 234,687,780
3 |Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to compdy with MRAR as on the date of balance 17,529,438
sheet
a (OHf balance sheet exposures - =
- First Logs =
- Others
b On Balance sheet exposures
- First Loss =
- Others 27,529,438
4 _|Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR 13,540,923
8 |oif-balance sheot eaposures
[l Exposure to own securitisations s -
- First Loss
- Others
i}  Exposure to third party securitisations
- First Loss =
- Others -
b On Balance sheet exposures
i} Exp ¢ to own securitisations
- First Loss 11,734,389 -
- Dthers® 1,806,534
i Exposure to third party securitisations
= Firgt lu_ii
- Othars -
"this does not include the collateralisation of eredit enhancing interest only strip and amortisation of securitisation nstruments Bsued.

33 The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115844 of the incoma-tax Act, 1961, as introduced by the Taxation
Laws [Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for incoma tax for the year ended March 31, 2020,

34 There is no amount due for paymant to the investor Education and Protection Fund under section 125 of Companies Act, 2013,

35 The Company has evaluated the Supreme Court Judgment in case of Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others ¥s The Regional Provident Fund
Commissicaner (11) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No. C-4/1{33]201%/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued
by the Employees” Provident Fund Organisation in relation ta non-exchusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages” of the
relevant employees for the purposes of determining cantribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellansous
Provisians Act, 1952. In Company’s assessmant, the above judgement ks not likely to have a significant impact and therefore presently no
provision has been made in the Financial Staternents.

36 Disclosures required by paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Man-Banking Financial Company - Systemically important Non-Depasit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in Annaxure |,

37 Previous year's figures have been reclassified regrouped, wherever necessary, 1o confirm with current year's classifications.

Far Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agareal Neera) Saxena
Partner MD E CEQ
Membership No, 118522
? o —
vendra Prabhu
Company Secrétary CFo

Mumbai Mumbai
jyvne 10,2020 June §, 2020




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Annexure | forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company
{as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(All amounts in Rupees lakhs)

Year ended March 31, 2020
Amount outstanding Amount overdue
Liabilities Side:
(1} |Loansand advances availed by the non banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
paid;
{a) Debentures
- Secured - -
- Unsecured 2,500.7
{other than falling within the meaning of public
5]
{b) Deferred Credits - -
(c)] Term Loans 20,729.3 -
(d] Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowing - .
(e] Commercial Paper
{fl Public Deposits - -
{g] Other Loans
Assets Side: - -
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables & -
[other than those included in (4) below]:
{a) Secured 27,1195 6.0
(b) Unsecured 19,629.9 -
(3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other -
li} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
(a) Financial Lease - -
{b) Operating Lease = -
(ii} Stock an hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a) Assets on hire - -
[b) Repossessed assets - -
(iii) Other loans counting towards Asset Finance Company
activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -
(b) Loans other than (a) above e 2




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Annexure | forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(Al amounts in Rupees lakhs)

(4 Break-up of Investments Year ended March 31, 2020
Amount

Current Investments:
1 Quoted ;

{i} Shares:  (a) Equity 5

(b) Preference =

{ii) Debentures and Bands 5

{iif) Units of Mutual Funds ‘

{iv) Government Securities 5

{v] Others &

[ 2 Unguoted:
(i) Shares: {a) Equity i

[b] Preference =
{ii} Debentures and Bonds =
{iii} Units of Mutual Funds =
{iv] Government Securities z

{v] Others &
Long Term investments :
1 Quoted:
{i) Shares: la) Equity o

ib) Preference -
(i) Debentures and Bonds n
{iii) Units of Mutual Funds B
(iv) Government Securities z
(v] Others &

2 Unguoted :
{i}  Shares: (a) Equity -
{b) Preference &

{ii) Debentures and Bonds =
{iii} Units of Mutual Funds -
(iv] Government Securities =
{v] Others -

Chartered Acgountants

]
RN 01275 an sl




Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
Annexure | forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(5] |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3] above:

Year ended March 31, 2020

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1 |Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b} Companies in the same group - =
(c] Other related parties - . -
2 |Other than related parties 27,119.5 19,629.9 46,749.4
Total 27,119.5 19,629.9 46,749.4

(Al amounts in Rupees lakhs)

(6] |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities

(bath quoted and unquoted):

Year ended March 31, 2020

Market Book value
value/f [Met of
Category break up | provisions)
or fair value
or NAV
1 |Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries = -
{b) Companies in the same group + -
{c) Other related parties R Z
2 |Other than related parties A
Total = =
(7} [Other information
Year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Amount
(i} |Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties E
(b) Other than Related Parties
(i) |MNet Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related Parties

(b} Other than Related Parties

(iil)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts




